


THE WHITE HOUSE 

WASHINGTON 

December 8, 1976 

ADMINISTRATIVELY CONFIDENTIAL 

MEMORANDUM FOR: 

FROM: 

SUBJECT: 

JAMES M. CANNON 

JAMES E. CONNOR~~ 

Public Works Employment Act: 
Prison Construction and Renovation 

The President reviewed your memorandum of December 2 on the above 
subject and approved the following: 

#3 -Advise the Attorney General thathis proposal has 
been rejected. 

The following notation was also made: 

"Timing bad - almost too late. However, if there is any 
discretion - on.:! project over another - I would want 
Secretary of Commerce to favor Attorney General's 
suggestion. " 

Please follow-up with appropriate action. 

c c: Dick Cheney 
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THE WHITE HOUSE 

WASHINGTON 

December 7, 1976 

MR PRESIDENT: 

Public Works Employment Act: 
Prison Construction and Renovation 

It was felt that some additional staffing was necessary 
to that reflected in the attached memorandum prepared 
by Jim Cannon on the above subject. 

This additional staffing reflected the following 
recommendations: 

Jack Marsh -Recommends Option 2. 

Alan Greenspan, Max Friedersdorf and Bill Seidman 
all recommend Option 3. 

Alan Greenspan offered some additional comments 
to support his recommendation of Option 3. His 
comments are at TAB D. 



.DECISION 

THE WHITE HOUSE 

WASHINGTON 

December 2, 1976 

MEMORANDUM FOR THE 

FROM: 

SUBJECT: 

JAMES 

Public Work 
Prison Cons 

Act: 
Renovation 

This memorandum seeks your guidance on a proposal advanced 
by the Attorney General for the earmarking of public works 
construction funds for projects of construction and 
renovation of State and local penal institutions. 
Alternatively, the Attorney General suggests that you 
direct a "high priority" be given to such projects. 

BACKGROUND 

On July 22, 1976, the Congress overrode your veto of the 
Public Works Employment Act of 1976, thus enacting the 
measure into law. As you know, the avowed purpose of 
the Act is to stimulate employment through the creation 
of public works jobs. Title I of the Act specifically 
provided for the funding of projects for the construction, 
renovation and repair of public facilities. 

On October 2, 1976, you signed into law H.R. 15194, the 
Public Works Employment Appropriations Act of 1976, 
appropriating some $3.95 billion for public works projects 
under the authorization act. Of this amount, up to $2 
billion is available under Title I for construction and 
renovation projects. 

The Economic Development Administration (EDA) in the 
Department of Commerce is responsible for the administration 
of this program. 

PROPOSAL 

The Attorney General has recommended that you direct the 
Secretary of Commerce to dedicate up to one-fourth of the 
funds available under Title I of the Act to be expended on con­
struction, renovation or repair of State and local 
correctional facilities . 

• 
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In the event you are opposed to an earmarking of these 
funds, the Attorney General suggests that, at a 
minimum, you encourage State and local governments to 
review their needs for construction, renovation and 
repair of correctional facilities in applying for 
Title I funds and direct the Assistant Secretary for 
Economic Development to give "high priority" to these 
applications. 

DISCUSSION 

The need for more prisons and for rehabilitation of 
existing prisons is clear and compelling. As you pointed 
out in a speech before the Florida Chapter of the Federal 
Bar Association last February: " ... America still has 
the same prison capacity as in 1960, although crime has 
doubled and the population has burgeoned." 

Because of overcrowding and dilapidation, many judges are 
reluctant to send convicted prisoners to certain jails. 
Indeed, approximately $300 million is required merely to 
bring various correctional facilities now under federal 
court order into compliance with federal court standards. 
Moreover, many believe the corollary to mandatory minimum 
prison sentences, as you and other responsible leaders 
have advocated, is more prisons. Finally, as a practical 
matter, dedication of up to one-fourth of the public works 
construction funds to building new prisons and renovating 
old ones would put "teeth" in your anticrime proposals.· 
Professor James Q. Wilson, of Harvard University, recently 
advocated a program of this sort as a fundamental building 
block of his theory on crime control. 

It is clear that at least $500 million of the $2 billion 
could be utilized effectively at the present time for the 
purpose advanced by the Attorney General. 

On the other hand, it should be pointed out that Title I 
funds will be available for prison construction projects 
and if a State or local government deems construction or 
repair of a correctional facility to be a priority it may 
apply to EDA for public works funds for the project. It 
could be argued, therefore, that by dedicating a set 
percentage of these funds to construction or repair of 
correctional facilities you are limiting the flexibility 
of State and local governments to set their own priorities. 
Secondly, dedicating a portion of the funds to one purpose 
would inevitably create pressures for similar dedications 
for other purposes. Finally, certain timing problems are 
raised by the proposal since it would require further delays 
in the distribution of grants under the Act and could result 
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in substantial embarrassment to the Administration for 
its failure to alert State and local officials of the 
dedication of prison funds in timely fashion. 

The alternative recommendation advanced by the Attorney 
General, to require "high priority" treatment for appli­
cations for prison funds would appear to be administratively 
workable, albeit burdensome, at this stage. Although EDA 
has all but finalized its consideration of applications 
for Title I funds, the application period could be 
extended slightly for the purpose of receiving additional 
grant requests for the construction or improvement of 
prison facilities. 

Attached ~t Tab A) is a copy of the Attorney General's 
proposal. Also attached are copies of the objections to 
the proposal which have been raised by Commerce and OMB 
(at Tab B) and Justice's reponse to those objections (at Tab C). 

ACTION 

Three options are available to you with regard to the 
proposal advanced by the Attorney General. An affirmative 
decision in this regard would be reinforced in your State 
of the Union message. 

1. Direct the Secretary of Commerce to earmark 
up to one-fourth of the funds available 
under Title I ($500 million) to be expended 
on construction, renovation or repair of 
State and local correctional facilities. 
[Principal recommendation of the Attorney 
General.] 

Approve Disapprove 

2. Direct the Assistant Secretary for Economic 
Development to give high priority to appli­
cations for Title I funds to construct, 
renovate or repair correctional facilities. 
[Alternative recommendation of the Attorney 

3. 

General. Recommended by Counsel's Office 
and the Domestic Council.] 

Approve Disapprove 

Advise the Attorney General that you 
rejected his proposal. [Recommended 
OMB and Commerce.] 

Approve Disapprove 

have by;;#{ 














































